ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007

(Time Noted – 7:06 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. Our first order of business this evening I’m going to read a letter from Carolyn Martini:

Dear Grace and Board Members of the Town of Newburgh ZBA: 

Please be advised that due to significant changes in my personal life I have decided to resign my position as Attorney for the Zoning Board of Appeals for the Town of Newburgh. For the past several years it has been a privilege serving the Town and to be part of the Governmental process which affects the overall development of land in our Town. I have commended this Board to our Supervisor and Town Counsel for the fine work and conscientious effort made by all of you during the past several years in ensuring that the applicants who come before the ZBA, our neighbors, business owners and developers are treated fairly and with respect. Thank you for your company during Board Meetings and I wish you all the best as you continue to act in the best interests of this Town’s residents. Very truly yours, Carolyn Martini. 

First, I would ask for a motion to accept the resignation of Carolyn Martini.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll Call.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: And I would like to at this time entertain a motion to approve the appointment of the Law Firm of Dickover, Donnelly, Donovan & Biaggi as Counsel for the ZBA

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second. 

Chairperson Cardone: Roll Call.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Welcome.

David Donovan: Thank you. Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I would also like to thank Mrs. Martini for all of her help during this past couple of years.

Ms. Gennarelli: Shall we do an attendance roll call? 

Chairperson Cardone: Please.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

DAVID DONOVAN, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

ROBERT KUNKEL

Chairperson Cardone: The Public Hearings are now open and the first order of business for the Public Hearings, the procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be asked to step forward, to state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have. And then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; however, we have up to 62 days to reach a determination. And, I would ask that if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off, so that we won’t be interrupted, and, when speaking please use the microphone because it goes directly into a recorder. 

(Time Noted – 7:10 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:10 PM) 

WILLIAM CONKLIN


427 ROCK CUT ROAD, WALDEN







(28-1-2.2) R-1 ZONE




Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to keep a prior built shed.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening is William Conklin, 427 Rock Cut Road, Walden. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: You may proceed.

Mr. Conklin: I’m just asking for a variance on a prior built shed, distance from a property line. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, this was built without a Building Permit? Correct?

Mr. Conklin: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: And this shed is how many feet from the property line?

Mr. Conklin: Approximately 30 inches right now.

Chairperson Cardone: 30 inches.

Mr. Conklin: About 2 ½ feet.

Ms. Eaton: Is it on a foundation?

Mr. Conklin: It’s on a slab.

Ms. Drake: How long ago was it built?

Mr. Conklin: Probably 1982.

Chairperson Cardone:  And the reason that the Building Permit was not obtained?

Mr. Conklin: Didn’t realize I needed one for a kit shed.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, thank you. I see on you’re diagram you have new second floor, new shed roof, on this part of the diagram here, are these additions that were put onto the house recently?

Mr. Conklin: Yes, ending in 1990, starting in 1986 or so, we started doing some renovations with …

Mr. Hughes: And, they were all Permitted?

Mr. Conklin: They were Permit, the second story is a Permit, the garage is a Permit.

Chairperson Cardone: The breezeway, everything there?

Mr. Hughes: Just for the information of the public, we go out to the site, every Member of the Board and look at the neighborhood and all the surrounding properties so that we can see how it might blend or not blend in with the neighborhood. You got a lot going on, on a small lot there, huh?

Mr. Conklin: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Is there anybody in the audience that’s here for this particular, besides the applicant, for this particular applicant?

Chairperson Cardone: If there’s any member of the public, would you stand and state your name and address? They’re being none I declare this part of the Hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Conklin: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me; I do want to read into the record … All the Members of the Board have a copy of the Report from the Orange County Department of Planning. In this case the proposed action will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. However the applicant needs to go in front of the Building Department if any future sheds or additions are to be constructed. And, I think that’s very important.  Now I declare this part of the Hearing closed. 

(Time Noted – 7:13 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 8:50 PM)

WILLIAM CONKLIN


427 ROCK CUT ROAD, WALDEN







(28-1-2.2) R-1 ZONE




Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to keep a prior built shed.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On our first application of William Conklin at 427 Rock Cut Road in Walden seeking an area variance for a side yard setback to keep a prior built shed. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Eaton: I found it disappointing that he didn’t know he needed a Building Permit, however there wasn’t any opposition by the neighbors and I’d make a motion to approve.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 8:51 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:13 PM) 

JUNE HAUG




56 MOUNTAIN VIEW AVE, NBGH







(14-1-23.1) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for an Accessory Apartment and an Area Variance for the gross floor area of the accessory apartment.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is June Haug, 56 Mountain View Avenue.

Mr. Haug: I am Fletcher Haug, my mother is June and I’ll represent her, is that all right?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s fine. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Could we have you’re name again, please?

Mr. Haug: My name is Fletcher Haug, June Haug’s son.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Proceed.

Mr. Haug: I’m applying for; my mother’s applying for a variance for an Accessory Apartment, which also exceeds the requirement in square footage.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have Town sewer?

Mr. Haug: No. 

Chairperson Cardone: Town Water?

Mr. Haug: No.

Mr. Manley: This question is for the Code Compliance, Mr. Canfield. Are we absolutely sure that this is not in the RR Zone. Cause it’s listed here as AR and something tells me that Mountain View is in the RR.

Mr. Hughes: That side of it is.

Mr. Canfield: I think you’re correct.

Mr. Manley: So, that’s incorrect on the application?

Mr. Haug: We did have that questioned when we were with the applications and most of Mountain View is actually, my mom’s is in the AR according to the map that’s down at the Town Hall and when I was … yeah, right next to Neighbor #1 is where my mom is and Neighbor #2 and Neighbor #3 are in the AR and my house which is right behind my mom’s is in a RR and everything North of that is RR. So, she is just in the AR and we discovered that when we went down there and looked at the maps.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Cause I know it’s very close to the …

Mr. Haug: It is. Yes, it’s actually …

Mr. Manley: … to the consolidated water district property and I know they just did some changes to, so I didn’t know if they changed that Zone as well.

Mr. Canfield: If I may refer to Joe Mattina who did that application?

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry. Could you use the mic, because it’s going into the recorder?

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, Code Compliance. There are about 6 lots on that side of the road that are in the AR. The Zoning change didn’t affect the lot lines that high up.

Mr. Manley: Do you want to maybe just check this Joe, the map here, it just …

Ms. Gennarelli: I believe I checked it.

Mr. Haug: Can I come up and point on the map?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you may.

Ms. Eaton: I think that it’s in RR, but I am sure you know better.

Mr. Manley: Are you saying that the lot is right here?

Mr. Haug: It’s this lot right there.

Ms. Eaton: Oh, O.K., it’s all right.

Ms. Gennarelli: AR.

Ms. Eaton: O.K. I see that now. Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli: It’s AR.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: That’s 40,000 sq ft, AR? And you have over two acres. Are you guys the two houses on either side of that?

Mr. Haug: We’re just behind her, yes.

Mr. Hughes: Grace could you maybe the four things that are required for the Use variance?

Chairperson Cardone: This is a Special Permit.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Special Permit and an area variance.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Just to be clear in my understanding, the Public Hearing is for both items, correct?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: I have a question too. He says the current square footage is 3100 sq ft and you turned him down on the basis of this 2837?

Mr. Mattina: Joe, from Code Compliance again, the 2837 comes right from the Assessor records the square footage that’s on file with the Assessor’s Department.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K., I just know there’s a difference between what he said and what you’re saying.

Mr. Mattina: Right. I took it right from the Tax Department.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Mr. Haug: I’m probably much more inaccurate than that.

Ms. Eaton: Is the proposed apartment in this 2-story addition that’s on here? Or is it all down in the basement? There’s a 2-story addition …

Mr. Haug: It’s all down; the apartment is down in the basement, the ground level floor.

Chairperson Cardone: And, where would the entrance be?

Mr. Haug: For the apartment or … ?

Chairperson Cardone: For the apartment.

Mr. Haug: It would be … in the photo you might see it right in the carport. There’s an existing entrance there. There’s a small carport and the entrance would be where the existing entrance is now. 

Ms. Drake: Will the number of bedrooms be increasing with the apartment?

Mr. Haug: No, no it’s, very little is changing really inside.

Chairperson Cardone: How many bedrooms will there be total, on all three floors?

Mr. Haug: On all three floors? One, two, three, four.

Ms. Eaton: Do you know the size of your sanitary system?

Mr. Haug: Yes, that was put in, in 1982 and we have the Building Permit to do that and I have that with me. I didn’t review it to know exactly the size of it but I have the paperwork. Would you like me to check that now?

Ms. Eaton: Yes.

Mr. Haug: It is 1000, 3 Bedroom if that makes any sense to you. Total tank capacity is 1000 gallons and I do not see a dimension of the leech field, do you mean? 

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm.

Mr. Haug: Yes, right. No, the leech field was not altered at all.

Chairperson Cardone: Shouldn’t that be 15?

Ms. Eaton: I believe for 4 bedrooms you need 1250-gallon tank.

Mr. Haug: I don’t know.

Mr. McKelvey: I thought it was 15. Is it 15, Jerry, or 1250?

Ms. Eaton: I think that’s for 4 bedrooms. 

Mr. Hughes: 4 bedroom, 1250.

Mr. Donovan: May I ask a question for purpose of clarification? Is it your testimony that there’s presently 4 bedrooms?

Mr. Haug: Well it’s hard to distinguish what a bedroom is, there’s a library, there’s a spare room.

Mr. Donovan: Are there 4 bedrooms being used in the house now?

Mr. Haug: They’re not being used. It’s just my mom who lives there. So, there’s just, there’s 2 bedrooms upstairs and there is 1 bedroom downstairs which will not be really a bedroom. So, there is going to be, there is 2 existing bedrooms and 1 more bedroom, which is not being used as a bedroom now. So, in total in the whole house there’s 3 rooms that are going to be designated as a bedroom, but there’s a fourth room that probably could be used as a bedroom.

Mr. Donovan: Is there going to be any difference with the apartment? The number of bedrooms is that going to change or is that not going to change?

Mr. Haug: No. Not at all, it’s going to be exactly the same as it is now.

Mr. Hughes: Does a Special Use Permit die upon sale?

Mr. Donovan: No. 

Mr. Hughes: It stays with the building.

Mr. Donovan: It lives forever.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: But maybe not forever, that may be an embellishment but it doesn’t die upon sale.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just wanted to know, I wasn’t sure.

Mr. Manley: If the home were up for sale for a year without an occupant that would cause the Special Use Permit to end or no? 

Mr. Donovan: I don’t know the answer to that question because I am not familiar enough with your Code to know if your Special Use Permit … are your Special Use Permits renewable?

Mr. Hughes: I think they are inspectable to on an annual basis. 

Mr. Donovan: Well there would need to be Compliance within any conditions that you impose. But I don’t think it would be analogous to a non-conforming use where you’re grand fathered unless you stop that use for a year or more.

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: I think it’s a different issue.

Mr. Hughes: Discontinuation?

Mr. Donovan: I don’t think a discontinuation would lapse the Special Use because it’s not a non-conforming use. I think the Special Use Permit would continue.

Mr. McKelvey: The problem is if he sells the house and he says he has 3 bedrooms and 1 other now going to be what but there could be 4 bedrooms later on.

Chairperson Cardone: Does the fourth room have closets?

Mr. Haug: No, it doesn’t. No.

Mr. Hughes: I think what they are trying to get at is right now your mother lives there alone.

Mr. Haug: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: In the future, if the building was to be sold and you had 4 usable bedrooms, you should have the bigger tank and that’s what they’re looking at right now.

Mr. Haug: Would that be something I have to address at the time of the sale?

Mr. Hughes: It may be a condition of this approval.

Mr. Haug: I see.

Mr. Hughes: So, that in the future that it protects for the rest of the neighbors around there and the lake.

Mr. Haug: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Canfield, when an Accessory Apartment, when that building is sold, that house is sold and the new owner purchases it, are they required to come down to Code Compliance to obtain a Permit for an Accessory Apartment again? Or no, you don’t require that?

Mr. Canfield: No.

Chairperson Cardone: If I could read from the Code Book, Special Permit Procedure, an Accessory Apartment shall require a Special Permit approval: such approval shall be renewed by each subsequent owner of the lot to determine that the conditions of the approval remain applicable. The Zoning Board of Appeals may determine that such approval should not be renewed if it finds that the purposes of the original approval are not or will not be met by a new owner of the lot. So does that answer your question?

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: There is no problem for parking there because you have 2 ½ acres on the parcel with the main house. 

Mr. Haug: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: So, if you get two people who share the 1 bedroom apartment and they both have a car you still have it covered.

Mr. Haug: Yeah, there is adequate space to put anything we need there.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. There being none I declare this declare this part of the Hearing …

Mr. Mattina: Yes, excuse me, Joe from Code Compliance, just to clear a couple of things up. On this application we did discuss keeping it a 3 bedroom and we did discuss possibly if there’s a fourth to upgrade the tank if necessary. But it was going to stay a 3 bedroom because one of them doesn’t have a closet. So basically room wise it’s not changing at all.

Mr. Haug: Could I also comment?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Haug: We have just determined that my mom has lived there for 50 years and she wishes to remain there and we have to make upgrades to the house as far as the heating system and just to make it comfortable and the whole reason for doing, the only reason we ever want an apartment is to just afford the loan, to pay back the loan in order to do the upgrades to make the house comfortable and safe. So, we’re pursuing this for the comfort of my mom and we’re not looking at it as income. We’re looking at it as an upgrade for just a quality of life issue. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.         

(Time Noted – 7:28 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 8:51 PM)

JUNE HAUG




56 MOUNTAIN VIEW AVE, NBGH







(14-1-23.1) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for an Accessory Apartment and an Area Variance for the gross floor area of the accessory apartment.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of June Haug of 56 Mountain View Avenue seeking a Special Use Permit for an Accessory Apartment and an area variance for the gross floor area of the Accessory Apartment. This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Could I have a motion for a Negative Declaration?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion for a Negative Dec.

Ms. Drake: Second the motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes                               Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think that ordinarily there should be a provision to put in an expansion for the tank, however because of the situation here. It’s unique in the situation that there’s not a gaining of any bedrooms and because the house is old and the rest of the family are surrounding properties offering somewhat of a buffer between the RR Zone that I would forego that in this situation.

Ms. Drake: But I’d like to add that should the house be sold that the tank be upgraded.

Mr. Hughes: I think that that could be a condition of the approval so that whoever comes in there next that it’s covered all the way around that’s close to our Reservoir system. So, you understand what we’re getting at with …

Mr. Haug: Yes. That makes sense.

Mr. Donovan: May I ask for purpose of clarification, if I can put the Building Inspector on the spot? I’m only a lawyer. Is it sufficient to just expand the tank or are there leech fields that need to be expanded as well? I mean is it better to say that the septic system needs be upgraded as opposed to just the tank itself? 

Mr. Canfield: I think there…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, I’m sorry, could you just take the mic? Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry. 

Mr. Canfield: I think there was a little uncertainty whether there would be 3 or 4 bedrooms. The way the Code is written if it remains 3 bedrooms what’s there is sufficient. I think it is the applicant’s responsibility to display to us exactly what that fourth room will be used for. If there is any potential that it will be a bedroom then the tank must be upgraded. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. But, it is for the purposes of when we write the decision, when I write the decision it’s just the tank there’s no ancillary components, to the septic system, that would need to be upgraded? 

Mr. Canfield: Just the tank.

Mr. Donovan: Thank you.

Ms. Drake: The septic field wouldn’t need to be increased volume of sewage from a fourth bedroom?

Mr. Canfield: Not typically, we haven’t.

Mr. Hughes: The purpose of the tank is generally for the disintegration factor of the solid waste. 

Ms. Drake: Hm, hmm.

Mr. Manley: The only other thing that I just have a question about and I’m still battling with the issue of, based on our Code from what the Chair had written, once the home is …

Chairperson Cardone: I didn’t write it, I read it.

Mr. Manley: Read it, I’m sorry; it’s been a long night. Once the house goes on the market to be sold the new owner would have to come back before this Board in order to use the Accessory Apartment again.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Can we put in the Decision and Resolution a requirement that the seller notify the real estate agent or the potential buyer that that is something they would have to do? So that, because a lot of times we wind up with people not knowing and unfortunately Code Compliance has to go out and tell them that it’s not a permitted use any longer.

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry. If the house is sold and a Municipal search comes in, when you’re office responds to that, would that response include a copy of the Special Use Permit approval and variance decision?     (Response inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: So, I think as opposed to putting an obligation on someone in the family to say something to a new owner that we may not have the ability to enforce, it’s in Decision and it’s incumbent upon the new homeowner to comply with it. Because it’s going to become part of the Building Code record and I do thank the Chair for correcting me since I misquoted the Section of the Law that I didn’t read. I managed to that on my first night but I think it’s better to have it specifically in the Decision and then it’s part of the Building Department’s record as opposed to trying to make a homeowner, they may forget.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to approve this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.            (Time Noted – 8:55 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:28 PM) 

POLHAMUS (Sally) & CARSTRON (Susan)
65 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH






        

(43-2-31 & 34) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum building coverage, maximum lot coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the existing side yard to build a rear addition on a 1-Family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicants are Polhamus & Carstron, 65 Balmville Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: All the mailings were in order.

Mr. Coppola: Good evening, my name is Anthony Coppola. I am the architect who has prepared the plans. What we are proposing is a rear, 1-story rear yard addition for Mr. & Mrs. Polhamus. They are located at 65 Balmville Road and that’s on Balmville Road close to the intersection of Chestnut Lane where the stoplight is. I’ll briefly go over the variances that we’re asking for. I’ll show you what we’re doing inside, the floor plan of the existing house and then I’m gonna explain some of what’s happening with the site plan and there’s two adjacent lots here. Basically Mr. & Mrs. Polhamus are moving into this house with the intention of helping Mrs. Polhamus’s mother who lives in the house right now and basically she is elderly and they’re looking for this expansion so that they can expand this house, where she’s living right now and basically move in and take care of her, that’s the idea of what’s going on here. This house is basically typical for a lot of the houses of this era that you would find in that area of Newburgh. It’s a 1-story brick ranch kind of a sprawling layout. It probably dates back to sometime in the 70’s. There’s a, the garage is basically the most forward part of the house. There’s a kitchen, dining room, living room, 3 bedrooms and another area we’re calling a home study or an office. There’s also an existing screen porch in the rear, we may have photos of that. That’s on our rear elevation. And, what we’re proposing to do is essentially again a 1-story addition towards the rear of the house. This is the real area that we could to make these bedroom areas bigger and that’s going to significantly increase the two existing bedrooms. The master bedroom is here now so that area gets increased by about 12 feet. The second bedroom, which is going to be used by Mrs. Polhamus’s mother basically gets expanded so that there’s a two, kind of a two area where there’s a sitting area and a bedroom that’s all part of the same wing. We’re basically proposing a larger accessible bathroom for her, that’s shown in the rear of the plan and there’s an existing bathroom in the center that’s gonna remain the way it is right now. We’re moving this just adjacent to the screen porch, this is a low sloping roof here so we don’t want to get involved with that roof and basically creating a reverse, let me show you the elevation. That’s the rear elevation, so there’s the existing screen porch, the existing roof behind and then what we’re proposing new here, her bedroom, the middle bathroom and then the master bedroom. And, again we’re only coming out a total of 12 ½ feet here then using the jog here which jogs out another 3 feet, so that’s 15’6” at this point. So, as far as the variances that we’re requesting in my mind the most significant is what the existing side yard setback here, I don’t think we’re increasing the existing of non-conformity right now what’s existing is about 9 feet clear. We actually taper away from the lot line slightly so we’re gonna have about 10, almost 10 foot clear by the time we get to the corner of our addition which is less than the 30 feet that’s required by Code. So, we’re asking for a side yard variance but again we’re matching the existing line of what we have. There are other things about this lot that are non-conforming, the lot size, and then things to do with the lot size, the lot coverage and the building coverage we’re non-conforming on those. So, we’re adding approximately 558 sq ft I’d say the existing house that’s fairly big it could be, I don’t have the square footage but it’s probably about 2500 sq ft and really if you look at the plan to expand the bedrooms, which this is kind of a dated design, the bedrooms are smaller, this is really the only area to do that this would be unfeasible to do on a 2nd floor addition or really to any other area of the existing layout because the kitchen is kind of on the other wing and actually we wouldn’t, this other side yard is just under 30 feet so that’s even non-conforming too. So, basically it’s existing side yards, the existing lot size and then the lot and building coverage, which are a function of the lot size. And, the existing lot is about 24,000 sq ft. Now, the site plan that you have shows two lots. It shows the front lot, which is 43-3-34, and it shows the rear lot 43-3-31. We received this information from their surveyor and it basically showed a couple of things. These two lots are in the same name right now but they’re not combined at the moment. They are two separate lots but they are in the same name. What’s shown on here is a lot line, basically a lot line to be removed and relocated because the pool was non-conforming to one of the lots. I don’t think that’s been done. That’s basically kind of a separate proposal, separate from our request tonight. And, what we’ve done is we’ve calculated all this, the variance request based on the way it is right now, the fact that this is a single lot. So we’ve calculated our variances which relate to lot size, building coverage and lot coverage based on the front lot alone because that’s the way it exists right now. So, it’s a little confusing, I just wanted to be clear about that so the Board understands exactly what we are doing. That’s it.

Ms. Eaton: If you did a lot consolidation you would only have to get a side yard variance.

Mr. Coppola: I fully realize that and to be perfectly honest it that’s something that the Board felt you wanted to do here, I’ve asked my clients and they would agree to that. In other words, combine the lots as a condition of this, our variance request.

Mr. McKelvey: It would make more sense.

Mr. Coppola: This is a non-conforming lot anyway in terms of size; I guess it’s probably about the same size as the other lot. So …

Mr. McKelvey: You’d have to go to the Planning Board …

Mr. Coppola: I think for a lot line removal, no.

Mr. McKelvey: No?

Mr. Coppola: To change the lot line, yes. To remove the lot, if the lots are in both the same names, I think you just consolidate the deeds.

Mr. Hughes: You can do that in the Assessor’s Office.

Mr. Coppola: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: I would tell you this, the pool is right in the middle of both, well not in the middle, but it’s on both properties and you’re shy 15,000 sq ft on the lot the way it’s presented. I agree with my colleagues that you should go to them, clean that all up, go to the Assessor’s Office and come back with that side yard. It would be much more receptive, right now you have 15,756 feet shy and that’s a big portion in that neighborhood. Your lot width is deficient by almost 46 feet and so on, I see nine or so different things in here. If you combine those lots and come back, I am sure you’ll only have that side yard except for your lot coverage to deal with.

Mr. Coppola: Well, I’d rather…

Mr. Hughes: You have indicated on your application that there is water and sewer in that neighborhood and there isn’t as far as I know.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes, we could make that a condition; I don’t believe he would have to come back; we could make that a condition.

Mr. Hughes: I’m fine with that.

Mr. Coppola: I would appreciate that.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a question to ask about the pool. It doesn’t have a Permit, yet? Or, what’s the status on the pool?

Mr. Coppola: I think this is an older pool, it’s been, what’s here except for my addition, everything is existing, so I can’t speak to the Permit about that. I’m not sure when it was constructed. I know it’s there. I know the tennis courts are there. But, I don’t know about the Permits to that pool, I mean…

Mr. McKelvey: You don’t know how long the pool has been in?

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: If I may? Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance Supervisor. We did research the records. We do not have any Permit on file for the swimming pool but there is another issue in existence and I think it further reiterates the importance of consolidating these lots because the pool, a swimming pool typically is considered an Accessory Structure. However, it is not permitted to put an Accessory Structure on a vacant lot. It’s accessory to nothing, there’s nothing else there. So, it makes good sense to clear all this up, to consolidate those lots but in fact, there is no Permit on file. But, the pool does appear to be there for quite some time, 80’s, prior to the 80’s. 

Mr. Hughes: And, the tennis court, are there Permits on that? 

Mr. Canfield: There isn’t anything on that either. 

Ms. Eaton: Can you have a tennis court on a separate lot, just a tennis court, if you can’t just have a pool?

Mr. Canfield: Tennis courts are named in our Zoning Code, O.K. And, there are requirements for them but typically we do not require Permits for them.

Ms. Eaton: But, they can be on a residential lot? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, they can. Yes, they can.

Mr. Hughes: With no main building?

Ms. Eaton: With no residents on it?

Mr. Canfield: No. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: First time I ever heard that before.

Mr. Canfield: And another, to answer Mr. Hughes’ question, Balmville Lane, Balmville Road, excuse me, is not served by Municipal Sewer. There is Municipal Water there however; we did research the records, this particular residence is served by a well. It does not have the benefit of Municipal Water.

Mr. McKelvey: Let’s go back to the question now; you’re adding a bedroom?

Mr. Coppola: No, I am expanding two bedrooms, so I’m not sure, it’s probably a 3 bedroom house but I mean the intention here is to expand this bedroom. We’re calling this a sitting area but you’d walk into the same room and then this is just one large master bedroom again that door is here, the walk in closet to that.

Mr. Hughes/Mr. McKelvey: (Inaudible) entrances.

Mr. Coppola: No, no you couldn’t, both of these would be non-conforming cause they don’t have light and ventilation. This one couldn’t be a separate room.

Mr. Hughes: So, you’re not really creating an apartment here.

Mr. Coppola: No, I’m not asking for an apartment.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just want to make that clear.

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, no this doesn’t, this wouldn’t be an Accessory Apartment at all.

Mr. McKelvey: We’re just asking on the bedrooms now because of the sewer system.

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, I understand exactly what you’re saying. So, I mean, I’m assuming it’s a 3 Bedroom house. I think that’s probably logical so it would remain a 3 Bedroom house. But, getting back to what we talked about before, I mean, I would agree to as that condition to consolidate the lots, that makes the pool and the tennis court conforming. Then, my variance request probably just drops to a side yard request.

Mr. Hughes: And, the lot coverage?

Mr. Coppola: And the lot coverage, I’m gonna be O.K. with.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, when you join them together?

Mr. Coppola: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the Hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:40 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 8:55 PM)

POLHAMUS (Sally) & CARSTRON (Susan)
65 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH






        

(43-2-31 & 34) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum building coverage, maximum lot coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the existing side yard to build a rear addition on a 1-Family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On application of Polhamus & Carstron at 65 Balmville Road seeking an area variance for maximum building coverage, maximum lot coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the existing side yard to build the rear addition of a 1-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think that we made it quite clear to the representative what we’re looking for, for clarification back to the Building Department and joining the two lots together through the Assessor’s Office so that they can reduce the number of variances required.

Mr. McKelvey: Also, to bring the rest … to bring the back part up to Compliance.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm. I think if we were to approve that we would have the conditions that spells out that the tennis court, the pool and all that stuff would have to be taken care of with Permits.

Chairperson Cardone: Would have to be brought to Code, right?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, standard.

Mr. Manley: So, any outstanding violations should be brought up to Code prior to a Building Permit being issued for the…

Chairperson Cardone: For the addition.

Mr. McKelvey: The addition.

Ms. Drake: The addition.

Chairperson Cardone: And the lot line would be taken care of.

Mr. Hughes: That disappears. Yes.

Ms. Eaton: Hm, hmm.

Mr. Hughes: They become combined into one lot, one tax parcel.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval to that effect?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Mr. Manley: Just one other question for clarification. And that would be, then they only need the variances for the side yard, correct?

Chairperson Cardone: That is correct.

Mr. Manley: Everything else disappears?

Mr. Donovan: And, I just want to make sure and I don’t know if we could this on the spot. In terms of building coverage, the tennis court would that have to go in the calculation for lot coverage.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, for surface coverage.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, for surface coverage, so we may be over the 20%. I don’t know if we are or not with that.

Mr. Hughes: I’d say by eye, no.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: Although we did not calculate that in.

Mr. Donovan: Correct, yes.

Mr. Manley: You did calculate the pool?

Mr. Canfield: No.

Mr. Manley: No?

Mr. Canfield: It’s a separate lot.

Mr. Donovan: You were just looking at 43-3-34, the one lot, right?

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Most of the pool is on that other lot with the tennis court.

Mr. Canfield: That’s why we expanded a little bit (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: So, you’re answer is … we’re not sure?

Mr. Canfield: To the question of …

Chairperson Cardone: The lot coverage.

Mr. Canfield: Did we take into consideration the tennis courts and the swimming pool, as they were one, and total calculations for surface area coverage? 

Chairperson Cardone: Hm, hmm.

Mr. Canfield: The answer to that question is no, we did not take this tennis court and the pool into consideration. If this Board chooses so, we will do those calculations and provide them to the Board.

Mr. Manley: Could we wait until next month?

Chairperson Cardone: We certainly could.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Reserve decision.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll rescind my motion.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. I couldn’t remember if there was a motion on the floor.

Chairperson Cardone: There was a motion on the floor. You’re rescinding your motion?

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Then we will do a motion to reserve decision until we…

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we reserve decision …

Chairperson Cardone: Pending information from the Building Inspector’s Office.

Mr. McKelvey: Right.

Ms. Drake: I second that motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

(Time Noted – 9:00 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:40 PM) 

LYDIA CICERO 



26 PADDOCK PLACE, NBGH







(57-4-10) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front deck.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Lydia Cicero, 26 Paddock Place. That mic comes right off the stand; you can take that right over there. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. The mailings were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: You may proceed.

Ms. Cicero: Hello, my name is Lydia Cicero and I am asking for a variance for the front yard setback so that I can have a front porch built.

Chairperson Cardone: After the front porch is added, will you have any kind of a slope or walkway going down to the driveway or are you going to keep the steps?

Mr. Bederman: I am Bob Bederman, I’m her builder, we’re going to be keeping the existing concrete steps and there is going to be a set of wooden steps coming down off the deck to meet those. We’re going to be taking out most of the concrete walkway. We’re going to leave a pad at the bottom of the wooden steps to make a left hand turn off of the wooden stairs onto the existing concrete stairs onto the driveway.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. But, then it would not be handicapped accessible from the driveway.

Mr. Bederman: No that is correct. She has a ramp going around the side to the back. The issue is just that she can’t get out the front door at all. God forbid there is a fire or something she can’t get away from the house. That large ramp in the front yard, she felt was … 

Chairperson Cardone: There is quite a slope going down to the street also on the front yard. 

Mr. Bederman: Well, she recently had the driveway repaved. So, it’s not much of an issue for her. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board?

Ms. Eaton: What size is the proposed deck?

Mr. Bederman: It was 10 x 16, I believe. It should be on there.

Ms. Eaton: I am reading 12 x 18 ½, I think.

Mr. Bederman: O.K., yeah that’s with the landing for the stairs, yes.

Ms. Eaton: Will it be covered?

Mr. Bederman: No.

Ms. Drake: Is the intent, so that if there is a fire or something in the back of the house and can’t get out through the ramp that she could at least get out of the house on the front?

Mr. Bederman: That’s an added benefit. The way it exists right now, there is a 2 x 4 concrete slab right out front of her house and with her walker she can’t fit on it. So, she can’t even go outside to see the neighbors. She can only get out the back of her house. So, really she just wants to be able to go outside and sit out front.

Ms. Drake: O.K. I thought it was for getting access out the front door.

Mr. Bederman: That’s an added benefit.

Ms. Drake: With the steps that makes it difficult, doesn’t it?

Mr. Bederman: Right, right.

Ms. Eaton: Aren’t there steps just in the back?

Mr. Bederman: No, there’s a ramp in the back.

Ms. Eaton: There’s a ramp?

Mr. Bederman: … that goes around the side yard.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the Hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:45 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 9:00 PM)

LYDIA CICERO 



26 PADDOCK PLACE, NBGH







(57-4-10) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front deck.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Lydia Cicero at 26 Paddock Place seeking an area variance for a front yard setback to build a front deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:01 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:45 PM) 

PETER & PATRICIA SMITH

105 CRONK ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-10)  A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an existing side yard setback increasing the degree of non-conformity for a three-lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Peter and Patricia Smith, 105 Cronk Road, Wallkill.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Clearwater: Good evening. My name is James Clearwater. I am a land surveyor with MJS Engineering. I am here with the applicant Mr. and Mrs. Smith. The Smiths own a 5-acre lot on the North side of Cronk Road and they have an application pending before the Planning Board for a (3) three-lot subdivision. This application was referred to this Board because the existing house which is located on Lot #1 and the existing distance between the house and the side property line is short of the required 30 feet. They have an existing distance of 27.8 and 30 is required. Now the house is existing and, pre-dates Zoning, as well as the property line on that side. It is pre-existing, however because of the application to the Planning Board the side yard looses it’s non-conforming protection and therefore it was referred here for a variance.

Ms. Drake: I just want to make a notice and reveal it, the Notary that you had sign the application, Deborah Harris, she is a cousin of mine. So, I just wanted to reveal that.

That’s O.K. Haven’t seen her in a while but …

Mr. Hughes: When was this parent lot created before the application for the sub-division? Is this a recent sub-division that came from the place next door?

Mr. Clearwater: No, I think the Smiths bought the property in 1985 and it was existing in that configuration at the time.

Mrs: Smith: 1978.

Mr. Clearwater: ’78.

Mr. Hughes: We all go out to the site and take a look at everything. So, we’re well aware of what’s around there and the neighbors as well. I have several questions here. There is a gravel drive in the back for your Lot #2 and you propose this …

Mr. Clearwater: No, no that driveway serves the neighbor’s property. That driveway doesn’t … you are referring to this driveway here?

Mr. Hughes: Yep.

Mr. Clearwater: That driveway serves the neighbor’s property, Neighbor #1’s. There’s two lots in the back of his property which … and that driveway serves that. Lot #2 on this application is served directly off of Cronk Road, both lots. 

Mr. McKelvey: The only lot we’re really talking about is Lot #1.

Mr. Clearwater: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Clearwater: That’s right. 

Mr. Hughes: A lot of wetlands in there, huh?

Mr. Clearwater: In the middle, yes.

Mr. Hughes: The wetland limits, I see one line only but I don’t see the other side of it. Is that this one here?

Mr. Clearwater: They’re both on here.

Mr. Hughes: Is that this one? Closest to the main house that you’re talking about?

Mr. Clearwater: Yes, this line here is one side and …

Mr. Hughes: …this is the other one? 

Mr. Clearwater: And, this is the other one. Yes. They’re Federal Wetlands, Army Corp Wetlands.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm. Do you have your 200 feet down gradients from all this stuff when all the dust settles or…? 

Mr. Clearwater: For what, 200 foot what?

Mr. Hughes: Away from the septic system?

Mr. Clearwater: It’s a, you’re requirements 100 and yes.

Mr. Hughes: 100?

Mr. Clearwater: 100.

Mr. Hughes: This is all down gradient towards the wetlands. I thought it was 200 down grade.

Mr. Clearwater: It’s 200; it’s 100 for open water.

Ms. Drake: It’s 200 if the septic system is above, directly above the well.

Mr. Clearwater: That’s not the case here.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Yes, please take the microphone and state your name and address.

Neighbor #2: Neighbor #2, my brother owns the home next door. He was unable to attend tonight because he is working and he just had a question. Would that ever affect him if they do build the homes in the property next door? Will that affect his driveway in any reason, because I know it’s short? 

Chairperson Cardone: Facing his house, are you on the left or the right?

Neighbor #2: To the right.

Chairperson Cardone: To the right.

Mr. Hughes: Do you want to come and look at this?

Neighbor #2: The property they have is to the left; we’re to the right.

Mr. Hughes: Do you want to look at this closer, the diagram on the driveway serve?

Ms. Gennarelli: What is the address of that?

Neighbor #2: _________ Road.

(Neighbor #2 approached to view the plans)  

Mr. Hughes: This is the road they’re planning on to serve the furthest house back and this is where they are coming in on the other one.

Mr. Clearwater: This is the Smith’s house here. This is ______ Road.

Mr. Hughes: This is Neighbor #1’s drive.

Neighbor #2: O.K. So …

Mr. Hughes: This is where they come in to this house. This is where they come in to this house.

Mr. Clearwater: These two houses are proposed.

Neighbor #2: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: And, this is where they are going to come in to this house.

Neighbor #2: Right.

Mr. Hughes: You’re over here?

Neighbor #2: We’re to the … their home is to the left of us. So, he just wanted to make sure that later on in the near future, if he had to build any homes on the lot behind him that he wouldn’t have any problems, you know, because of the driveways.

Chairperson Cardone: Has there been a Public Hearing at the Planning Board or … ?

Mr. Clearwater: It hasn’t been scheduled yet.

Chairperson Cardone: But there will be one?

Mr. Clearwater: Presumably.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s the time you would be able to address that issue.

Neighbor #2: O.K. He just wanted me to ask that question. He wasn’t too sure if that would … 

Chairperson Cardone: And, you would get a Notice of that Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: That would be at the Planning Board not this Board.

Neighbor #2: O.K. All right. Thank you.

Mr. Clearwater: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? This is the report from the Orange County Department of Planning

In this case the proposed action of an area variance for an existing side-yard setback will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns.

Any other comments? If not, I declare this part of the Hearing closed. Thank you.

 





(Time Noted – 7:49 PM)  

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 9:01 PM)

PETER & PATRICIA SMITH

105 CRONK ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-10)  A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an existing side yard setback increasing the degree of non-conformity for a three-lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Peter & Patricia Smith at 105 Cronk Road seeking an area variance for an existing side yard setback increasing the degree of non-conformity for a three-lot sub-division. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Eaton: They are only asking for a 2.2-foot variance for Lot #1. It won’t affect any other of the proposed lots in the three-lot sub-division. I don’t see a problem with it. I make a motion to approve.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:49 PM) 

EMIL PIGNETTI, III



11 WINDY RIDGE ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-94) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity by adding a deck to a pool in the front yard. (has two front yards) 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Emil Pignetti, III. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings are in order. All the mailings are in order for both of them.

Mr. Pignetti: My name is Emil Pignetti; I’ve applied for two variances, one for a pool deck and one for a shed in the backyard. And, after applying for the Permits, I was informed that I have two front yards. I’m special.

Chairperson Cardone: And, no backyard.

Mr. Pignetti: No backyard and I have two front yards and two side yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Pignetti: I should have a tax deduction there.

Chairperson Cardone: Let’s start with the pool deck. Do we have any questions from the Board? And, that pool was already there when you bought the house?

Mr. Pignetti: When I bought the house, yes and I bought the house in August.

Ms. Drake: Will the deck be going off on the side where the ground, it slopes up on one side of pool, will the deck be going off onto that into the …?

Mr. Pignetti: It’s going to be, if you were at the property if you’re looking at my backyard or front yard, where the pool is, it would be to the right. The deck is going to be going towards the shed, the existing shed that’s on the property.

Ms. Drake: So, it’ll be where the ground is level, and not going up?

Mr. Pignetti: Not going up towards the house, no.

Mr. Manley: The shed or garage would be used for which for purpose.

Mr. Pignetti: The shed I’m building?

Mr. Manley: 24 feet long.

Mr. Pignetti: Well, I asked for 24 feet, I don’t know what the size restrictions are or anything. I figured the Permit would tell me that. Just, that’s all going to have in there is snowmobiles and quads, try to get them from sitting around. 

Mr. Manley: Any storage of vehicles at all?

Mr. Pignetti: Excuse me?

Mr. Manley: Storage of vehicles at all?

Mr. Pignetti: No, I have a 2-car garage under the house.

Mr. Manley: Will there be electric?

Mr. Pignetti: No.

Mr. Manley: And, are you keeping the old shed?

Mr. Pignetti: Yes. It’s a dollhouse that I’m told.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the Hearing closed.

(Time Noted – 7:53 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 9:02 PM)

EMIL PIGNETTI, III



11 WINDY RIDGE ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-94) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity by adding a deck to a pool in the front yard. (has two front yards) 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Emil Pignetti, III, 11 Windy Ridge Road, seeking an area variance to increase the degree of non-conformity by adding a deck to the pool in the front yard. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: There’s really no concerns from the neighbors that live there.

Ms. Eaton: And they do have two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve this application? 

Mr. Manley: I’ll make the motion to approve.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Abstain

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:53 PM) 

EMIL PIGNETTI, III



11 WINDY RIDGE ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-94) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure in a front yard. (has two front yards) 

Chairperson Cardone: And now we will deal with the accessory structure. Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: That Accessory Structure is 12 x 24?

Mr. Pignetti: I asked for 12 x 24, I’m not sure what the restrictions were. So, I figured I would ask for more and be told what I can have. I guess the restriction is what, a thousand feet total between sheds? Is that what it is?

Mr. Hughes: There is a maximum on it.

Mr. Pignetti: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: There is a formula that is applied depending upon how much acreage you have and how big your house is and some other things.

Mr. Pignetti: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to make it a note too at this time, Mr. Pignetti’s mother is a very dear friend of mine, and so I will be abstaining on this vote.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public on this application?

Mr. Pignetti: I do have a question. Doesn’t have to do with this. There is an easement down the side of my property where the Town of Newburgh has a, I guess it’s where the water flows out of the development and goes into a little drainage area in the back, it’s detention area, it’s on one of the ..

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, it’s the drainage district.

Mr. Pignetti: Is that my responsibility to keep clean, how does that …? I get two answers.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we’re really not empowered to rule on that.

Mr. Manley: If it’s a private drainage area, it’s the responsibility of the residents that are within that subdivision.

Mr. Pignetti: O.K.

Mr. Manley: If it’s a Town owned drainage area, which normally they set up a drainage District for that, if it’s not in a drainage District then the Town is not responsible for drainage.

Mr. Pignetti: It is not responsible for that, then the upkeep would be mine to make sure that’s flowing through the back and all that and …

Mr. Manley: Normally what happens is, there should be some sort of agreement within the homeowners, within your Windy Ridge development, normally. If there’s not, then …

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know that this is a known drainage District. I think this was before, so, I don’t know.

Mr. Donovan: Just for the purpose of clarification, even if there is not a District you could still have, it can, I don’t know what the answer to your question is, but it could still be a Town obligation because you haven’t formed a District, the District just allows you to tax the people who live in the area. Without a District it can still be publicly maintained, it just comes out of Town-wide general funds.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Hughes: In some situations, the homeowners around that District don’t have any maintenance agreement on it and what Mr. Manley is referring to is whether it’s an authorized and legitimate drainage District, the Town has the right to go in and clean it and repair it and charge the homeowners by putting a lien against their taxes to make sure the maintenance is required.

Mr. Pignetti: O.K.

Mr. Manley: And, you’re area may be so, I mean they did that in the 80’s, right, the early 80’s? 

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield, do you have anything to add to this?

Mr. Pignetti: I think 92 it was built, 92 or 93.

Mr. Canfield: I believe that sub-division was in the 90’s, early 90’s era.

Ms Gennarelli: Excuse me, I’m sorry, could you use the mic?

Mr. Canfield: Sure.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: I believe that sub-division was of the 92, 93 era. We have it on file in our office, I can research it and I can also through the applicant’s mom, tell him who is responsible for the Drainage District. I don’t believe it is a District. In that era they were not very popular in the Town.

Mr. Hughes: I think the real District was about 5 years ago.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? If not, I declare this part of the Hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Pignetti: Thank you.  

(Time Noted – 8:01 PM)

(Note: some issues regarding shed addressed during the pool deck application)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 9:03 PM)

EMIL PIGNETTI, III



11 WINDY RIDGE ROAD, WALLKILL







(1-1-94) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure in a front yard. (has two front yards) 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Emil Pignetti, III, 11 Windy Ridge Road, seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure in a front yard. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: This is the same case, two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Abstain

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                               (Time Noted – 8:01 PM) 

WILLIAM STOHNER


31 WOODLAND DRIVE, WALDEN







(29-2-8) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum allowable height; build an accessory structure in front yard (has two front yards) and maximum square footage allowed for an accessory structure to build an accessory structure (garage) in a front yard. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is William Stohner, 31 Woodland Drive, Walden.

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings were in order.

Mr. Stohner: I’m applying for three variances to build a garage. One is for the allowable height; I have two front yards, and the square footage allowed for accessory buildings on the property. 

Chairperson Cardone: You’re also asking for a 18 ft instead of the allowed 15 ft, could you explain the reason for that?

Mr. Stohner: Yes, the height of the garage.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Could you explain the reason for that? 

Mr. Stohner: One, I want to have 10 ft doors on the garage, 10 ft high, 10 ft wide, so I can back my boat in and it’s almost 9 feet and I would like to have a little extra room and then also the height will match. I took a picture of the house; I live in a barn that’s converted.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, we’ve been to the property.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you take the mic with you? It goes into the machine, sorry.

Mr. Stohner: The height of my main structure, it should all match. That was built in 1925. It was a barn and we’ve converted it. And the height, the roofline will match this existing structure.

Chairperson Cardone: And, is that the same reason why you need more square footage than the allowable?

Mr. Stohner: Well, by all the time I put all my stuff in it. I’m also loosing a 3-car garage next door, my grandmother passed away so, I need a garage to put my truck and my trailer and stuff in. 

Ms. Eaton: Is the height of your house 35 ft?

Mr. Stohner: Pardon me?

Ms. Eaton: The height of your residence?

Mr. Stohner: My residence is almost 36, 37.

Mr. Donovan: May I ask, are there any other garages in the neighborhood? Are there any other garages in your neighborhood?

Mr. Stohner: Yes, my next-door neighbor has a 3-car garage.

Mr. Donovan: And, relative to your request for 18 ft and 1428 sq ft, how do they compare? How does that garage compare to what you propose?

Mr. Stohner: My garage is 2 feet wider and 7 feet longer.

Mr. Donovan: How about height wise?

Mr. Stohner: My garage is 3 feet higher.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning

In this case the proposed action of a larger garage with increased height then allowable under current zoning restrictions may have some visual impact upon the surrounding neighborhood. It will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. There should be a caution against allowing too many variances on a single proposal, as it could set precedence in the future and negatively impact the surroundings. 

Could you respond to the visual impact in the neighborhood?

Mr. Stohner: In what way?

Chairperson Cardone: Would it be seen from neighboring houses?

Mr. Stohner: It’ll be seen from probably three or four houses in the neighborhood, yeah, at least four.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I agree with the County’s opinion that it may be precedential in its area. What you have to understand, Mr. Stohner is that the Code provides for a maximum of 1000 sq ft and I see you have a 12 / 12 pitch on this. If you reduced the width of the garage and got it down to where it was 1000 ft, you would also reduce the altitude and the height of the peak of the barn. You could still get my 10 x 10 door in that by doing so.

Mr. Stohner: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So, whatever it is you may reconfigure this to, to hit that 1000 ft mark I believe is the best that this Board is allowed to empower you to build. Town Code says 1000 ft maximum no matter what your lot is and there is a big part of the formula that takes into consideration the square footage of your house and everything else on the lot. So, could you live with the 1000 sq ft on that building and reduce the width of it and thereby bring down the peak height to 15 feet? 

Mr. Stohner: If I reduce the width, it still doesn’t change the height of the, well the peak of the roof because it’s a kit that I wanted put up and it’s made …

Mr. Hughes: Well, we got the tail wagging the door here. If your roof matches the building and you bring your walls in, this also comes down because you don’t have this going on.

Mr. Stohner: Well, some.

Mr. Hughes: The more of this you have going on, the more of that you have going on.

Mr. Stohner: I might be able to lower the walls and put the 10 x 10 doors inside it.

Mr. Hughes: Well, you’ve got that three feet thing going on and your footprint of 1000 that needs to be considered because I’m not comfortable with setting a precedent allowing your particular project to exceed what we’ve done anywhere else in Town.

Chairperson Cardone: Are the dimensions 26 x 42?

Mr. Stohner: Yes, they are.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s 1092. It doesn’t come to 1428.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, that’s where we’re confused because I’m looking at this and then I open up your plans from your kit that referred to and it says Stohner Barn. It is a barn; it’s a pole barn in essence.

Mr. Stohner: In essence it is, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So, if you could get rid of 92 feet with something 42 feet long that’s not so hard to do.

Chairperson Cardone: But, with those dimensions it would only be 1092, it would not be that much over.

Mr. Manley: But, you have the wood deck here, the pool and the wood shed.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, you’re counting the other shed here.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, they add all the buildings on your property to make that 1000 ft. I’m …

Chairperson Cardone: …wasn’t counting the other shed.

Mr. McKelvey: Just to get it straight, that’s all.

Mr. Manley: So what ends up having to do is, in order to get it to comply, he has about 400 and something right now, correct?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: Well, he could remove the other shed    (tape shut off and turned over, back on)

Mr. Stohner: That’s a possibility; I couldn’t remove the shed until the garage was put up.

Chairperson Cardone: That could be a condition.

Mr. Hughes: Well, we could make that an approval with a condition. If you’re willing to remove the shed and make the main building 1000 feet, then you can have everything you want. Can you live with that?

Mr. Stohner: I could but it takes time, you know.

Mr. Hughes: We know, what goes on with the construction end of it as well. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering all those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the Hearing closed. The Board is going to take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. I would ask in the interest of time if you would step out into the hallway and we’ll call you in, in just a few minutes. Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Just one quick thing, if we could back up, I have a comment, a correction for the record. I misspoke before on the Polhamus/Carlstron application. The question I believe from either Mr. Hughes or Mr. McKelvey was in regards to the tennis court and the answer to that question and I misspoke, 185-43 specifically does mention tennis courts included with swimming pools. So, they must be accessory to a specific use. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:11 PM) 

 ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                (Resumption for decision: 9:04 PM)

WILLIAM STOHNER


31 WOODLAND DRIVE, WALDEN







(29-2-8) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum allowable height; build an accessory structure in front yard (has two front yards) and maximum square footage allowed for an accessory structure to build an accessory structure (garage) in a front yard. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of William Stohner at 31 Woodland Drive seeking area variances for maximum allowable height, accessory structure in the front yard and maximum square footage allowed for an accessory structure to build an accessory structure in a front yard. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think we wrung this one out pretty well. Everybody is aware of the factors involved and after the discussion with the Board I think that if Mr. Stohner will concede to remove the building that’s there we may consider the 1092 sq. ft. building the way it is.

Ms. Drake: I just want to clarify which building you want removed, the existing shed, not the house.

Mr. Hughes: Good point. 

Ms. Drake: And, also we would grant the variance for the height.

Mr. Hughes: Yes that goes along with it.

Mr. Donovan: Now, I think the applicant’s request was to allow the existing shed to remain …

Mr. McKelvey: …until the garage is …

Chairperson Cardone: …is constructed, yes.

Mr. Donovan: …is completed. Now, I don’t know in terms of timing when, because presumably he can’t move his stuff in there before he gets his Certificate of compliance for the new garage.

Mr. Hughes: Upon receiving the C.O., the condition of the approval will be he will remove the shed after that.

Mr. Donovan: And, I think we should put a time frame on it, 30 days, 60 days. 

Mr. Manley: 30 days.

Mr. Donovan: 30 days, O.K.

Mr. Stohner: I would like to at least get 60 so I can at least sell it. It was bought from Mr. Shed. It’s got to be moved. It’s not a home built, I purchased it.

Mr. Hughes: It’s a pre-fab shed?

Mr. Stohner: Yes, it is.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm. O.K. 60 days, it’s another 30 days than what we wanted, that shouldn’t be a big deal?

Mr. Manley: Mr. Canfield, would that …?

(Response inaudible)

Mr. Manley: Sir, when do you feel that your shed or the new pole building will be completed, July of this year?

Mr. Stohner: Well, I’m going to start within 30 days and I’m putting it up myself, so … and I work full time.

Mr. Manley: I’m just trying to think, cause you know with winter time coming …

Mr. Stohner: We’re going to try to have it enclosed and done by winter. 

Mr. Manley: O.K., I’m just trying to …

Mr. Stohner: I can only …

Mr. Manley: I’m just trying to think of selling a shed in the winter might …

Mr. Stohner: I’ll do the best I can…

Ms. Drake: Is there a time frame for construction of projects that receive a variance? I’m not sure.

Chairperson Cardone: They have to begin within 6 months.

Mr. Hughes: But, there is no construction schedule constraint is there? There is?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, there is

Mr. Donovan: Yes, you could have an out-date on your Permit, right?

Mr. Hughes: What is it Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: 6 months from the time of variance then a Building Permit there is 6 months for the start of construction from the issuance of the Permit. From the issuance date of the Permit it’s good 18 months.

Mr. McKelvey: I’m sure he’s going to have it done before then. 

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval as stated?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

 Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:08 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 26, 2007                          (Time Noted – 9:09 PM) 

OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

JAMES McLAUGHLIN

1 RATHMORE ROAD, MARLBORO






(8-1-106) A/R ZONE

Received area variance approval on December 28, 2006 for an above ground swimming pool. Request to revise to an in-ground pool.  

Chairperson Cardone: Under other Board Business, I have a communication from James and Darlene McLaughlin at 1 Rathmore Road:

On December 28, 2006 we appeared before the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals to request an area variance to construct a swimming pool on our property, which is located at 1 Rathmore Road, Marlboro in the Town of Newburgh. We needed to appear before the Board as our property is located on a corner and is surrounded by three roads 

(Rathmore Road, Athboy Drive and Old Post Road). 

On or about January 18, 2007 we received our Building Permit which states the builder as Royal Pools of New Hampton, NY, and the pool as a 28’ x 16’ above ground pool. Since this Permit has been issued we have had another company look at our property and inform us that they are able to construct an in ground pool (as we originally were told we would not be able to do so because of the amount of rock on our property). We have the opportunity to do some digging at the site, and have been informed by Charles Burger of Foxxx pools in Highland, NY that it is possible to put an in-ground pool with minimal increase in cost (when considering the cost of an above ground pool and the deck we planned to erect). We are now writing to request that the Building Permit is revised to read “15’ x 27’ in-the-ground pool” and that the builder is listed as Foxxx Pools by Charles Burger of 44 New Paltz Road, Highland, NY 12528.

In reviewing the decision to grant the variance allowing a pool to be located in a front yard where one is not allowed under the Code, it is our opinion that our request to change the Building Permit in no way contradicts the approval of the variance. The Board reviewed five standards to determine whether they would approve our request and we feel that changing from an above ground pool to an in-ground pool does not change the findings for any of the five standards evaluated. As a matter of fact, nowhere in the variance does it state “above ground” pool. Much of the variance addresses the “character of the neighborhood” and “visibility” of the structure. Although it is true that our property is elevated and heavily wooded and therefore any type of pool would be “nearly invisible to our neighbors and the public at large”, it is our belief that an in-ground pool would be even less likely visible. We also feel that an in-ground pool would add value to our house and therefore to the neighborhood and would in no way “adversely impact the physical or environmental conditions in our neighborhood”.

It is our hope that because the pool is smaller, will be placed in the ground and does not seem to contradict the variance you will consider our request to change the wording on the Building Permit and allow to construct the in-ground pool.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion that we allow attorney to revise the previous decision from above ground to in-ground pool on the basis of the fact that the pools are in similar size.

Mr. Hughes: And, also in consideration that it’s basically the same footprint. That there is no difference in size that will have an effect on the lot coverage.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second that motion.

Mr. Manley: Just discussion, real quick, any issues Mr. Canfield, none?

Mr. Canfield: None that I’m aware of.

Mr. Hughes: Appropriate Permits, electrical inspection.

Ms. Drake: Fence.

Mr. McLaughlin: That’s my question, is there any kind of different inspections that have to be done.

Mr. Mattina: (inaudible)

Mr. McLaughlin: Is there a footing inspection that has to be done?

Mr. Hughes: Could you identify yourself?

Mr. McLaughlin: I’m sorry. I am James McLaughlin.

Mr. Hughes: We need to have it on the record. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Everybody has to use the mic, please. 

Mr. Mattina: (inaudible)

Mr. McLaughlin: Yeah, all right.

Mr. Hughes: Your grounding and stuff has to be done before backfill so your electrical inspector can see that part of it as well. 

Mr. McLaughlin: Yes. And whether it’s an in-ground or above ground I still have to run the electric, so … 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, but you can’t backfill until he approves the grounding part, the in-ground.

Mr. McLaughlin: Yes, I understand.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We have a motion on floor. 

Ms. Gennarelli: And a second?

Chairperson Cardone: Did we get a second on that motion?

Mr. Manley: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: John did. O.K. Roll Call

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. McLaughlin: Thank you. My wife will be so happy. Thank you. Good night.

Chairperson Cardone: Good night. Everyone has a copy of the Minutes from January, February and March. Do we have any additions, deletions, corrections?

Mr. McKelvey: I have a correction on January, Depew Oil, page 8, I made a statement that I think one sign it refers to Newburgh Auto it says Auto Auction and it’s Auto Park.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: Page 8, paragraph 7.

Ms. Gennarelli: Auto Park, O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s where all the car dealers are.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other corrections?

Mr. Manley: Just a request, could we vote on each one of these individually?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: We’ll start with the January Minutes.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we accept the January Minutes.

Ms. Drake: Second that motion.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye.

Aye  -  John McKelvey

Brenda Drake

Ruth Eaton

Ronald Hughes

James Manley

Grace Cardone

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone:  Do I have a motion to accept the February Minutes?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to accept the February Minutes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye

Aye  -  John McKelvey

Brenda Drake

Ruth Eaton

Ronald Hughes

Grace Cardone

Abstain:     James Manley 

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to accept the March Minutes.

Mr. McKelvey: I will abstain from the March meeting I wasn’t here.  

Chairperson Cardone: I need a second for that.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor please say Aye.

Aye  -  Brenda Drake

Ruth Eaton

Ronald Hughes

Grace Cardone

Abstain:     John McKelvey

Abstain:     James Manley 

Robert Kunkel: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any other business? If not, I declare this Meeting closed until next month.                                   

 (Time Noted – 9:14 PM)    

